
 

Meeting Minutes 

  

Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

To: Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup Date: July 15, 2024 

From: Larissa Rohrbach, ATS Coordinator, Anchor QEA 

Re: Final Minutes of the June 27, 2024, Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup Meeting 

 

The Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup (ATS) meeting was held virtually on June 27, 2024, from 

9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. Attendees are listed in Section IV of these meeting minutes.  

Action Item Summary 

• Erik Lesko and Larissa Rohrbach will revise the ATS Work Plan to address issues related to 

data sharing. The ATS Work Plan stoplight table will be distributed to the ATS before the next 

meeting. 

• Lesko will distribute a list of the addressed comments on the Annual Report by email before 

the next ATS meeting. 

• Rohrbach will shorten the point of contact list in the “Membership and Points of Contact” 

section of the ATS Charter to include key points of contact for each organization.  

I. Welcome (Lesko) 

A. Review Agenda 

Two meeting topics were added to the agenda: Coho Transition Plan Implementation Update (II-B) 

and ATS Role In Upper Lewis Basin Bull Trout Monitoring (II-C).  

Changes and updates to the agenda regarding the Bull Trout Working Group (BTWG) were 

discussed. At the last Aquatic Coordination Committee (ACC) meeting, a decision document was 

presented on the implementation of adult Coho Salmon upstream supplementation in 2024, with a 

decision to be made by the August ACC meeting. Rohrbach said it is important to clarify what 

recommendations, monitoring approaches, and recommendations pertaining to supplementation in 

2024 are being brought to the ACC by the ATS. Bryce Glaser noted that Jeff Garnett (U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service) is not present at today’s meeting to provide insight from the BTWG. Lesko said the 

BTWG’s feedback on the decision document will be presented to the ACC. If needed, it can also be a 

future agenda topic for an ATS meeting. Kale Bentley would like an update on the status of the 

discussions held outside of the ATS regarding the Bull Trout monitoring associated with the Coho 

Salmon supplementation in 2024.  



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

Jesse Cody (Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife [WDFW] hatchery staff) was welcomed to 

the ATS and added to the ATS distribution list.  

II. ATS Meeting Topics 

A. Annual Report Feedback – Topics for ATS Consideration (Lesko; 30 min) 

Lesko said the Lewis River Hydroelectric Projects 2023 Annual Report (Annual Report) was submitted 

to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission this morning. Between the terrestrial and aquatics 

sections, 150 comments were received. Lesko proposed to have a short discussion with the ATS on 

the general themes he identified in the comments.  

Lesko shared the most recent version of the ATS Work Plan, dated January 2024, and noted that 

there are tasks that are not being accomplished on an annual basis. The ATS Work Plan is included in 

appendix A of the Annual Operating Plan. There were 10 to 12 comments on the Annual Report 

related to data gaps, data management, and how data are shared. The Annual Report is intended to 

provide a summary of analysis and results and does not provide specificity for data-intensive metrics. 

There are specific data sets that are not readily available to properly inform some tasks, analyses, and 

metrics such as specific proportion of natural origin brood needed to calculate proportionate natural 

influence appropriately (e.g., data are pooled). Lesko shared a stoplight table that shows the progress 

made on the tasks, metrics, and key questions of the Lewis River Hatchery and Supplementation 

(H&S) Plan. Tasks within the ATS Work Plan pertaining to Objective 3 of the H&S Plan have 

historically received the most attention. There are tasks, such as evaluating feeding rations and avian 

predation rates, that have not been addressed by the ATS.  

Lesko asked whether it would be helpful to walk through the subset of comments and their 

responses. Bentley said that some comments were addressed in more detail than others. Producing 

data that is not useable has halted the ATS’s progress on completing tasks. Organizing useable data 

should be a priority. Last year, comments were noted by PacifiCorp; however, they were not 

addressed as schedules became busy. A system to analyze high-priority tasks and sort comments 

should be formulated. A column dedicated to the next steps forward for each task could be added to 

the table. Lesko said a perpetual problem within the ATS is that it is difficult and time consuming to 

delve into prioritizing tasks each month.  

Glaser acknowledged the importance of summarizing what information in the Annual Report will be 

presented to the ACC. The ACC may be able to help with task prioritization. The work plan has been 

a helpful tool for the ATS; however, the ATS is not intended to be the primary generator of work. 

Delays in task completion may be caused by the assumption that the ATS needs to be the primary 

group involved. For instance, avian predation analyses could be conducted by PacifiCorp or 



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

contracted out. Once completed, the metrics could then be added to the prioritization queue and 

addressed by the ATS.  

Rohrbach said the ATS Work Plan has not been updated since January. It would be optimal to refine 

the table and identify updates while these discussions are taking place. It is impossible to revisit all 

tasks in each meeting. Therefore, pacing discussions out over the year with one topic per month 

would help tackle this issue. Identifying short-term versus long-term decisions will be essential to the 

prioritization process.  

Review of the ATS Workplan will be added to the ATS July meeting agenda. The ATS Work Plan and 

Annual Report stoplight table and list of the addressed comments will be distributed to the ATS 

before the next meeting. A column dedicated to the next steps forward for each task will be added 

to the ATS Work Plan table. 

B. Coho Transition Plan Implementation Update (Lesko/Young; 20 min) 

Rohrbach summarized last meeting’s discussion on the Lewis Coho Hatchery Transition Plan. It was 

concluded that it would be difficult to implement the transition plan this year. Lesko and Kevin 

Young will provide updates on the discussion had outside of the ATS pertaining to this topic.  

Young summarized the infrastructure alternatives for the transition plan. Installation of water chillers 

or raceway dividers will be required to handle the eight or more egg takes of the new integrated 

program. Lesko proposed a third option: to use Speelyai Hatchery for cold-water rearing.  

Lesko and Young met with the hatchery staff on Monday. Young said the discussion was strictly 

focused on the logistics of hatchery operations, the functionality of the infrastructure currently in 

place, and cost analyses. The hatchery staff walked through potential scenarios involving varying 

amounts of egg takes and the operations of the facility with and without water chillers. Young said 

the use of Speelyai Hatchery would not overall achieve rearing and ponding goals. Lesko said 

PacifiCorp came out of this discussion with a better understanding of the issues with implementing 

the transition plan. PacifiCorp requires more clarity on all operation and management costs, such as 

differential marking expenses. Lesko needs to provide justification for these costs within PacifiCorp. 

Lesko also provided a set of policy questions to bring to the ACC or Glaser.  

The conclusion of this discussion is that due to substantial infrastructure needs, there is not enough 

time to move forward with the transition plan this year. The new target will be to implement the 

transition plan in fall 2025. Young emphasized that all the alternatives produce varying time 

constraints to staying on target for fall 2025. It is essential to maintain focus on infrastructure 

preparation otherwise implementation may be delayed as it has been this year. Glaser said an 

intermediate phased approach to implementation does not seem ideal, therefore a change in the 



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 4 

 

 

transition plan’s timeline should be reported to the ACC. The ACC needs to have a record of progress 

updates as the transition plan is implemented. There have not been objections to implementation 

from an Endangered Species Act (ESA) coverage perspective. Work can be done internally in 

PacifiCorp to obtain funding and make preparations.  

Lesko said a formalized recommendation could be presented to the ACC. The technical and policy 

aspects of the transition plan are moving forward simultaneously. Further input from the ATS is not 

needed at this moment. Lesko will continue to work with hatchery staff to establish the preferred 

approach to implementation by August. Transition plan implementation updates will remain on the 

ATS meeting agenda for the upcoming months.  

C. ATS Role in Upper Lewis Basin Bull Trout Monitoring (Lesko; 20 min) 

Josua Holowatz said it would be beneficial to have this discussion with Garnett present. Rohrbach 

asked in what manner the ATS should be contributing to this discussion. Glaser said it is the BTWG’s 

role, rather than the ATS’s, to develop Bull Trout monitoring strategies. Jeremiah Doyle said 

presently, the rate of superimposition of Coho Salmon redds on Bull Trout redds is below the 10% 

threshold for concern. The BTWG has developed a monitoring plan that Garnett will present to the 

ATS. Glaser said Garnett will touch on proposed strategies, risk thresholds, and how appropriate 

metrics will be evaluated. This information can be used by the ATS to inform a decision. Glaser would 

like Garnett to present information that summarizes the biological opinion to help WDFW gain clarity 

on aspects of the document.  

Lesko asked whether this will be a topic in an ACC meeting, because the decision document is 

scheduled for approval in July. Glaser said approval of the decision document is based on monitoring 

data that needs to be collected during the 2024 and 2025 Coho Salmon transport year. Several paths 

could be taken to keep the decision document moving forward and further develop the transport 

and collection curves. Approval of the decision document could be deferred until a Bull Trout 

monitoring plan is solidified, or, to approve the decision document, a sentence that describes the 

outlining ongoing coordination between BTWG and ATS could be added.  

D. ATS Charter Revisions (Rohrbach; 20 min) 

Rohrbach discussed edits made to the ATS Charter based on feedback received from the ATS. A 

phrase was deleted to loosen the language pertaining to the directive of the ATS. The role of the ATS 

was refined to clearly define the topics the Fish Passage Subgroup (FPS) engages with. Emi Melton’s 

comment in the “Recommendation Documentation” section clarified that nothing in the 

recommendation document should be interpreted as ESA coverage unless explicitly stated. In the 

“Milestones and Measures” section, phrasing was added to demonstrate the need to change the 



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 5 

 

 

H&S Plan based on consultation results. Glaser said in-season decisions, such as the transport of 

broodstock, are acceptable for the ATS to make autonomously of the ACC. For example, the ACC 

may decide on the number of fish to transport but the ATS will decide how to implement this 

transport number. This decision-making process should be defined in the charter. 

The “Membership and Points of Contact” section identifies ATS members that act as the primary 

channel of information for their respective organizations. Melton said that she can be the primary 

contact for the National Marine Fisheries Service. Rohrbach suggested nominating someone from 

the hatchery management branch of WDFW to be a point of contact. Glaser said Anja Huff could be 

a point of contact for hatchery related topics; however, WDFW’s primary contact is Bentley. If a 

hatchery contact lead is desired, Glaser can coordinate with Bentley and Young to determine how 

best to handle that. Rohrbach asked whether all the names of the core ATS members should be on 

the point of contact list or whether it should be kept to the key points of contact. Lesko replied that 

members will contribute to topics with varying degrees. If there are many names listed, it will turn 

into a large distribution list that will need continual updating.  

Melton inquired about the purpose of the point of contact list. Rohrbach responded that the list is 

modeled after a section in the FPS Charter. The point of contact list could be useful to identify a 

primary contact for a common group of participants. If the list is not useful and it is already clear 

who is receiving information, the ATS can decide whether this is a necessary section of the charter. 

Lesko suggested identifying the primary contacts in each organization, recognizing that there is 

already a distribution list.  

Rohrbach proposed two options: keep a short list of primary contacts or replace the point of contact 

list with a list of the organizations that attend ATS meetings, with three different departments listed 

for WDFW. Glaser said he would like WDFW’s point of contact to be centralized through Bentley. 

Melton said it would be helpful to identify what departments are participating within each 

organization. This list could be developed independently from the charter to be used as a reference 

for ATS members. Rohrbach will shorten the list to include the key points of contact for each 

organization. The timeline for review of the ATS Charter will be extended until the next meeting.  

III. Updates 

A. Genetics Monitoring Plan (Lesko; 20 min) 

Lesko said contractors have made revisions to the Genetics Monitoring Plan based on comments 

received from WDFW. Lesko will distribute a clean and redlined version of the Genetics Monitoring Plan, 

as well as a completed comment response matrix. These documents can be sent to the entire ATS if 

desired. Otherwise, the documents will be sent to the members involved in the revision process.  



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 6 

 

 

The plan was revised to outline the steelhead sample collection framework downstream of Merwin Dam 

and Upstream of Swift Dam. The framework is not final, and the plan will adapt as needed. Bentley asked 

whether this modified version has made progress on identifying additional samples to be collected, 

baseline evaluations, and data gaps in monitoring. Lesko replied that the plan has clarified what samples 

are on hand and what samples are not available for analysis. The framework additionally outlines 

sampling locations. Bentley said that juvenile summer steelhead samples must be collected as soon as 

possible to fill in data gaps. Lesko said the goal is to collect these samples this summer.  

B. Adult Steelhead Mark-Recapture (Lesko; 10 min) 

Doyle said the adult steelhead mark and recapture work has wrapped up for estimating abundance 

and composition of spawners downstream of Merwin Dam. Mount Hood Environmental (MHE) has 

the data needed to run the proportion of hatchery-origin spawners model. The script for the model 

is being refined. Doyle will meet with MHE tomorrow to determine the completion date of the 

model’s first output.  

Holowatz inquired on the final numbers of steelhead captured. Doyle replied that out of the 78 adult 

steelhead captured, 44 were salted fish and 24 were residual fish. No recaptures were caught by hook and 

line in the Lewis River. The Merwin upstream Fish Collection Facility recaptured several fish. Bentley asked 

whether the mark-recapture results will be presented and summarized in a report. It will be important to 

evaluate this information to begin planning work for next winter. Moving a deliverable deadline up would 

be beneficial because it previously took 6 months for the ATS to work through adult steelhead mark-

recapture data. Doyle replied that per the contract, the deadline for a report is November. Lesko said a 

presentation to the ATS by MHE will tentatively be planned for September.  

C. Hatchery Practices and Pathology Updates (Hatchery and Fish Health Staff; 

20 min) 

Cody said summer steelhead broodstock are being collected at Merwin Hatchery. The traps will be 

shut down the second week of July. There is a surplus of summer steelhead downstream of Merwin 

Dam. Surplus broodstock will be taken and shipped from the Lewis River fish ladder to Merwin 

Hatchery. The facility is holding summer steelhead juveniles in the raceways, late winter steelhead fry 

in the incubation room, and Rainbow Trout. There is a fishing derby coming up this summer.  

Spring Chinook Salmon broodstock numbers are on track with collection goals at Speelyai Hatchery. 

All adults will be passed upstream. Code wire tagged jacks will be in surplus. A rotating screen is 

being pulled for maintenance.  

Mike Chamberlain said summer steelhead broodstock are being held at Lewis River Hatchery in case 

there is no recruitment. Spring Chinook Salmon juveniles are doing well. Marking and tagging of 



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2024 

Document Date: July 15, 2024 

Page 7 

 

 

early Coho Salmon has finished. Marking and tagging of late Coho Salmon is halfway though and will 

be finished in mid-July. Lesko asked whether a June release of spring Chinook Salmon occurred this 

year. Young replied that 50,000 fish were released on June 3.  

IV. ATS Administration 

A. Next Meeting July 25, 2024 (Rohrbach; 5 min) 

The next meeting on July 25, 2024, will be a hybrid meeting, with the in-person attendance held at 

the WDFW Region 5 office: 5525 S 11th Street, Ridgefield, Washington 98642. 

V. List of Attendees 

Name Affiliation 

Caitlin Burd Anchor QEA 

Larissa Rohrbach Anchor QEA 

Amanda Farrar  Cowlitz PUD 

Amelia Johnson LCFRB 

Kathryn Blair NOAA Fisheries 

Emi Melton NOAA Fisheries 

Jeremiah Doyle PacifiCorp 

Mark Ferraiolo PacifiCorp 

Chris Karchesky PacifiCorp 

Erik Lesko PacifiCorp 

Kale Bentley WDFW 

Mike Chamberlain WDFW 

Jesse Cody WDFW 

Bryce Glaser WDFW 

Josua Holowatz  WDFW 

Anja Huff WDFW 

Aaron Roberts WFDW 

Kevin Young WDFW 

Keely Murdoch  Yakima Nation 

 

 


